69839-7

No: 69839-7

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION I

OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, SEATTLE

JEANNE PASCAL and DALLAS SWANK, husband and wife,

Plaintiff/Appellant

VS.

WH PARK PLACE MEZZ, LLC; WH PARK PLACE, LLC

Defendants/Respondents

BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

CARL A. TAYLOR LOPEZ Lopez & Fantel, Inc., P.S. 2292 W. Commodore Way, Suite 200 Seattle, WA 98199 Tel: (206) 322-5200

I. INTRODUCTION.

Appellant Jeanne Pascal was severely injured by a misleveled elevator in the Park Place Building. Respondents WH Park Place Mezz, LLC and WH Park Place LLC, building owners, (hereinafter referred to collectively as Park Place) are common carriers with respect to the offending elevator.

A common carrier owes the highest duty of care to its passenger short of being an insurer. Jeanne Pascal presented evidence establishing that standard was not met. Summary judgment should not have been granted.

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- A. The trial court erred by entering summary judgment against Plaintiff/Appellants Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank December 7, 2012.
- B. The trial court erred by denying Plaintiff/Appellants Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank's motion for reconsideration entered January 7, 2013.

III. ISSUES RELATED TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

A. RCW 5.40.050 provides breach of a duty imposed by a statute may be considered by the trier of fact as evidence of negligence. An elevator safety statute provides elevators must level within ½ inch accuracy. There was evidence supporting the contention the elevator which injured Jeanne Pascal had misleveled by more than ½ inch. Was it error

- for the trial court to find Park Place was not negligent as a matter of law? (IIA, IIB)
- B. Park Place is a common carrier with respect to the elevators in the Park Place Building. Park Place hired Fujitec to perform its elevator maintenance. Can Park Place avoid common carrier liability by hiring a third party to perform duties owed by Park Place to elevator passengers? (IIA, IIB)
- C. Uncontradicted evidence established random mislevelings of the Park Place garage elevator of ½ to ¾ of an inch around the time of Jeanne Pascal's accident. The trial court disregarded the testimony of mislevelings of ½ inch or more and assumed mislevelings of ½ inch or less. Was it error for the trial court to assume misleveling of the garage elevator at the time of Jeanne Pascal's accident did not exceed ½ inch? (IIA, IIB)
- D. The trial court assumed Park Place garage elevator misleveling did not exceed ½ inch despite contrary evidence from a fact witness and an expert witness. After disregarding estimates of misleveling beyond ½ inch, the trial court stated that, because the elevator safety statute only mandates leveling accuracy to be within ½ inch, any misleveling of ½ inch or less was specifically allowable and as a matter of law the higher degree of care placed on a common carrier was met. Was it error for the trial court to find the common carrier burden of care was met as a matter of law by meeting the safety code where Washington case law has specifically held compliance with safety regulations does not necessarily satisfy the higher degree of care placed on a common carrier? (IIA, IIB)
- E. Complaints about elevators were entered by Park Place building guards in a logbook maintained by the guards and kept at the guard desk. Park Place reported in response to discovery that it had been unable to find the guard log book. Was it error for the trial court to assume there had

been no complaints of misleveling where Park Place was unable to produce the guard log book that would have contained those complaints? (IIB)

IV. STATEMENT OF CASE

January 21, 2010 Jeanne Pascal's foot was stopped by the misleveled floor of the garage passenger elevator in the Park Place Building, and she pitched forward into the elevator. She suffered severe injury, requiring surgery on both shoulders and years of rehabilitation. CP 255-6.

Thirteen days after Jeanne Pascal's accident, Barbara Lither went to the offending elevator and took pictures. She reported random mislevelings of ½ inch to ¾ of an inch by her estimation. CP 257-65.

Park Place owns the Park Place Building. Park Place contracted with Fujitec to maintain elevators in the Park Place Building. The Fujitec maintenance agreement required elevator leveling accuracy to be within ¼ inch. CP 226-7. The agreement called for Fujitec to perform maintenance on the elevators once a month. The agreement also provided for service calls when problems showed up between monthly maintenance visits. CP 179-80.

There were many reports of garage elevator mislevelings by tenants. CP 266-8, 317-8. Bogdan Wojnicz in particular was a Special Agent with EPA's Criminal Investigation Division. He stated the garage elevator was a constant problem. He states he complained many times to the Park Place representatives about the garage elevator misleveling. He states there were

definitely times where the garage elevator misleveled by more than ½ inch. He states this was a particular problem for him because he was frequently maneuvering equipment and/or file boxes. Mr. Wojnicz states his complaints brought no obvious improvement in the misleveling problem. CP 269-72.

When problems with the elevators were reported to building guards, an entry was made in a separate logbook maintained by the guards and kept at the guard desk. CP 266-8, 317-8. As of the date of the summary judgment hearing, Park Place had not located the guard log book. CP 315.

Building guard Michael Graeber testified there was a decline in elevator maintenance once Fujitec took over. He further states building tenants had so many complaints about elevators after Fujitec took over that he requested and obtained a change to a weekend shift so he would not have to deal with all of the complaints from building tenants about the elevators. CP 266-8, 317-8.

The Fujitec employee who maintained the Park Place elevators was Chris Love. Love testified at deposition that he was aware of no mislevelings of the garage passenger elevator from September 2009 through January 2010. CP 213-5. In direct contrast to this the October 15, 2009 TR Work Order list to Fujitec states: "day porter reports garage elevator not leveling on 1st floor." CP 224. The work order indicates it was assigned to

Fujitec and dispatched. The work order does not state "work started" or "work completed" as it states for a February 23, 2010 (different) work order to Fujitec that appears on the same page. CP 224.

The Fujitec ticket summary indicates that January 2010 tasks related to the Park Place elevators were incomplete. The Fujitec PM ticket for December 2009 through February 2010 for the garage passenger elevator indicates the monthly inspection for January 14, 2010 (7 days before Jenne Pascal's accident) was not performed. CP 239.

Love, the Fujitec technician, states he was not informed of Jeanne Pascal's January 21, 2010 accident until two weeks before his deposition on October 3, 2012. Love never discovered the random misleveling problems which Barbara Lither found within 13 days of Jeanne Pascal's accident. CP 213-5, 257-65.

Elevator expert Charles A. Buckman states misleveling greater than ½ inch violates the Revised Code of Washington and national rules (ASME) adopted by Washington related to elevator safety. He states it is probable the misleveling that tripped Jeanne Pascal exceeded the safety code maximum, given the Lither declaration and photographs as well as the fact that tripping would be improbable if misleveling were less than one half inch. CP 240-4.

Mr. Buckman states Park Place failed to adequately respond to described elevator mislevelings reported before Jeanne Pascal's fall. He states at a minimum the significant risk presented by misleveling should have been investigated aggressively to discover the source of the problem. Mr. Buckman states there is no record that reported misleveling was adequately investigated, and there is no record that Park Place adequately followed up with Fujitec with respect to documented misleveling problems. Id.

Mr. Buckman stated the fact that the garage passenger elevator misleveled as much as ¾ of an inch at times was evidence that maintenance of that elevator was inadequate. Mr. Buckman states that with proper maintenance the elevator should not have been more than ¼ inch out of alignment with the floor, which, incidentally, is consistent with the requirement of the Fujitec contract. Mr. Buckman noted that the fact that Barbara Lither, a lay person, discovered the garage passenger elevator misleveled while Fujitec and Park Place did not make the discovery is evidence the inspection process used by Fujitec and Park Place was inadequate. Id.; CP 226-7.

Mr. Buckman states misleveling is the most common cause of elevator passenger injury. He states trip hazards must be anticipated and that it is not sufficient to simply wait for reports of accidents. Mr.

Buckman states there is a need to aggressively check for the source of misleveling problems and that all reports of misleveling must be taken seriously and followed up on. Mr. Buckman states this was not done and that failure to do so was negligent. CP 240-4.

Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank, husband and wife, filed suit June 6, 2011. CP 1-2. Fujitec was brought into the case January 12, 2012. CP 55-61.

Limited discovery took place. By agreement the parties suspended discovery pending mediation. CP 315-7.

Mediation was unsuccessful and discovery began again.

Defendants then moved for summary judgment. At the time there were outstanding discovery requests, including request for production of the guard log book containing elevator complaints. Also pending was the deposition of Fujitec personnel familiar with the software running the garage elevator. Id.

Summary judgment was granted by the trial court CP 296-300.

Among other reasons given by the court for its ruling was the following:

"...apparently the RCW allows misleveling of up to a half an inch. That's allowable." RP 29.

Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank timely moved for reconsideration with respect to Park Place pointing out the outstanding discovery among the other issues. CP 301-12. Reconsideration was denied. CP 319-21.

This appeal followed. CP 322-31. The dismissal of Fujitec was not appealed.

V. ARGUMENT

Standard of Review.

Summary judgment is only appropriate if the pleadings, answers to interrogatories, depositions, declarations and admissions reveal there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. CR 56(c). In determining whether a genuine issue of fact exists, all evidence and all inferences that can be drawn from the evidence must be drawn in favor of the nonmoving party.

Ruff v. County of King, 125 Wn.2d 697, 703, 887 P.2d 886 (1995.

For purposes of summary judgment all evidence and all inferences that can be drawn from the evidence must be construed in favor of Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank. Where there is any conflict in the evidence, the conflict must be resolved in favor of Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank for purposes of summary judgment. The trial court cannot weigh evidence.

B. Evidence of misleveling greater than ½ inch was evidence of negligence which should have prevented summary judgment.

The inference that can be drawn from the evidence is that Jeanne Pascal was severely injured by an elevator that had misleveled more than a half an inch. Barbara Lither made estimates of misleveling beyond a half inch shortly after Jeanne Pascal's accident. CP 258. Jeanne Pascal stated she was tripped by the misleveled elevator, which caused her to fall. CP 255. Elevator expert Buckman reports misleveling was likely beyond a half inch because misleveling less than that was unlikely to trip. CP 242-3.

RCW 5.40.050 provides a breach of a duty imposed by a statute may be considered by the trier of fact as evidence of negligence. Chapter 70.87 RCW deals with elevators. RCW 70.87.030 provides the Department of Labor and Industries is to adopt safety rules and establish minimum elevator standards for existing installations and specifically adopts the American Society of Mechanical Engineers Safety Code for Elevators, Dumbwaiters, and Escalators (ASME). WAC 296-96-0650 references ASME A17.1, Rule 2.26.11 (a) and (b) which requires floor leveling accuracy of $\pm \frac{1}{2}$ inch because of the known trip hazard danger. CP 242-3. The implication is that misleveling below $\frac{1}{2}$ inch is unlikely to present a trip hazard.

Barbara Lither testified she personally observed the Park Place elevator by more than ½ inch within 13 days of Jeanne Pascal's fall. She took pictures of the misleveling. Those pictures are part of the record. CP 257-265.

Barbara Lither's testimony is evidence. Taking her testimony and the expert testimony that a misleveling of less than ½ inch was unlikely the trip someone, it is reasonable to infer the Park Place garage elevator had misleveled by more than a half inch when Jeanne Pascal fell. Since this violates the safety statute, it is evidence of negligence which should have precluded summary judgment.

The court at the summary judgment hearing stated that because the statute required accuracy within ½ inch, any misleveling accuracy up to ½ inch was not negligent as a matter of law. RP 29. There are at least two flaws in this argument. First, it ignores the fact that the Lither declaration describes misleveling greater than one half inch. Second, this analysis has specifically been considered and rejected by the courts as it relates to common carriers.

In <u>Brown v. Cresent Stores, Inc.</u>, 54 Wn.App. 861, 776 P.2d 705

(Div. 3, 1989) Crescent attempted to obtain summary judgment by arguing that because it had met the statutory elevator safety standards, as a matter of law it was entitled to judgment. The <u>Brown</u> court stated: "Compliance with safety regulations, however, does not necessarily satisfy the higher degree of care placed on a common carrier." <u>Id.</u> at 868. The <u>Brown</u> court cited <u>Dennis v. Maher</u>, 197 Wash. 286, 84 P.2d 1029 (1938) as support for this proposition. <u>Dennis</u> stated:

A common carrier such as a city in this instance was, is held to the highest degree of care compatible with the practical operation of its busses. That duty would not be met, as a matter of law, by mere observance of the laws of the road.

Id. at 291.

An issue of fact exists with respect to Park Place's common carrier negligence. Summary judgment in favor of Park Place should not have been granted.

C. As a common carrier Park Place could not avoid its burden by delegation to Fujitec.

Park Place is a common carrier with respect to passengers in its elevators. <u>Dabroe v. Rhodes Co.</u>, 64 Wn.2d 431, 433, 392 P.2d 317 (1964). This is a nondelegable duty. <u>Niece v. Elmview Group Home</u>, 131 Wn.2d 39, 54, 929 P.2d 420 (1997).

As a common carrier the law holds Park Place to the highest standard of care compatible with the practical operation of its elevators. Murphy v. Montgomery Elevator Co., 65 Wn.App. 112, 116-7, 828 P.2d 584 (Div. 2, 1992). Whether or not that standard has been met is a question of fact for the jury. WPI 100.01.

In the case at bar the court was persuaded no issue of material fact exists and that Park Place met this exceptional standard as a matter of law. Jeanne Pascal and Dallas Swank respectfully suggest review of the facts

reveal this is not so and that inferences from the evidence were improperly applied by the trial court against the nonmoving parties.

The court in granting summary judgment inferred from the evidence that the misleveling of the garage passenger elevator reported October 15, 2009 was responded to by Fujitec and followed up on by Park Place. This conclusion could only be arrived at by inferring evidence in favor of the moving party, which is not permitted on summary judgment. Ruff v. County of King, 125 Wn.2d 697, 703, 887 P.2d 886 (1995).

The evidence was that Chris Love, the Fujitec employee who serviced Park Place elevators, stated there were no reported mislevelings of the Park Place garage elevator from September 2009 through January 2010. Yet on October 15, 2009 the "day porter reports garage car not leveling on 1st floor." This directly contradicts the testimony of Chris Love. Further, although the same page indicates work was assigned and someone was dispatched, the status is described as "open" and there is no indication the work was completed, as is stated on the February 23, 2010 (different) item listed on the same page. From this it cannot be inferred that the garage passenger elevator misleveling problem observed October 15, 2009 was addressed and resolved. In fact the inference taken in favor of the nonmoving party is that this misleveling problem was not addressed, resolved or followed up on. Certainly, it cannot be assumed the misleveling

problems were addressed without improperly taking inferences in favor of Park Place.

Evidence was, also, presented which showed no monthly inspection by Fujitec the month of Jeanne Pascal's fall. The inference is that there was no such elevator inspection despite the contract requirement, which is less than the highest degree of care possible by any measure.

Additionally, Fujitec employee Chris Love reports he was not even informed of the fact of Jeanne Pascal's accident until two weeks before his deposition. CP 155. This means Park Place apparently failed to inform of probably the most dramatic misleveling event in the history of the Park Place building. From this it can be inferred that Park Place is not as diligent as a common carrier should be with respect to reporting and responding to elevator misleveling.

By ruling as it has, the trial court in effect found that, as a matter of law, the highest degree of care compatible with the practical operation of its elevators was for Park Place to hire Fujitec to maintain its elevators once a month and to respond to service calls when received. On its face this cannot represent the highest degree of care, especially since Park Place Building guard Graeber reports a decline in elevator maintenance once Fujitec took over elevator maintenance. Obviously, Park Place could have contracted to have Fujitec inspect more than once a month. In Murphy v. Montgomery

<u>Elevator Company</u>, 65 Wn.App. 112, 828 P.2d 584 (Div. 2, 1992) elevators were to be serviced two times a month under the agreement in place there.

It cannot be said that Park Place, by signing a contract providing for only monthly maintenance and inspection, met the highest degree of care compatible with the practical operation of its elevators since others, in fact, do so more often. Further, more frequent inspections and maintenance undoubtedly would increase the chance of actually discovering random mislevelings, which seemed to be the problem here.

Obviously, the decision to have Fujitec conduct only monthly inspections was an economic choice. It was undoubtedly cheaper to have Fujitec inspect and maintain less frequently. However, it was not safer.

Even if the decision to have only monthly maintenance and inspections was the highest degree of care possible, there is no reason Park Place could not have had its own workers, such as janitors, keep an eye out for elevator mislevelings and report them. This would have increased Park Place elevator safety at no additional cost to Park Place. Further, it would have, in effect, provided inspection of all elevators on all floors on a daily basis. There is no evidence Park Place did this. Hiring Fujitec to conduct monthly maintenance and inspections and respond to service calls is not proof as a matter of law that Park Place met its common carrier burden.

The law is clear that a common carrier cannot avoid its burden by

delegating duties it owes its passengers to third parties. Park Place cannot wash its hands of responsibility for Jeanne Pascal's safety by simply entering into a maintenance agreement with Fujitec. The highest possible duty with respect to its passengers still applies to Park Place regardless of the contract with Fujitec. Summary judgment in favor of Park Place should have been denied.

D. Summary judgment based on assumptions by the trial court related to relevant documents which had not been located by Park Place was improper.

The order granting summary judgment should be vacated to permit the completion of discovery related to assumptions made by the trial court. The court assumed, for purposes of summary judgment, Park Place had no notice of the misleveling problem.

As was previously pointed out, the guard logbook in which complaints about misleveling would have been written was not produced by Park Place; further, the deposition of Fujitec software personnel had not taken place. The logbook had been requested and the software person's deposition had been requested prior to the time of the summary judgment hearing.

By mutual agreement the parties had agreed to delay certain discovery until after mediation. Mediation took place November 19, 2012. When settlement did not occur, both sides geared discovery back up. The

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