A. SUMMARY AND IDENTITY OF PARTIES 

Appellant Jeanne Pascal had worked in Respondent Park Place's 

office building for 26 years without incident. But shortly before she 

retired, right after Park Place purchased the building, she claims she fell in 

that elevator and was injured. 

Park Place, like its predecessor building owner, contracted with 

elevator maintenance company Fujitec to perform monthly preventative 

maintenance as well as service callbacks for the elevators. Fujitec 

performed all of its monthly maintenance work on the parking garage 

elevator, including on January 13, 2010. Pascal fell in the parking garage

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

this issue, then the trial court properly did not grant a summary judgment 

continuance because Pascal and Swank failed to meet the CR 59(f) 

standard for continuance, e.g., explaining how the additional evidence 

would create material fact disputes. The trial court also properly denied 

reconsideration because Pascal and Swank failed to meet the CR 59(a) 

standard for reconsideration, e.g., their alleged need for discovery did not 
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constitute the "newly discovered evidence ... " required for reconsideration. 

(Appellants' Assignments of Error IlIA, IIIB). 

C. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE 

1. Identity of Persons and Entities Involved. 

Park Place. Beginning in January 2010 (just prior to Pascal's 

fall), Respondent WH Park Place Mezz, LLC owned a commercial 

building at 1200 Sixth Avenue, Seattle. CP 62:25-26. The building had 

eight elevators, only one of which, the "garage elevator," was a passenger 

elevator that descended to the parking garage. CP 153 :22-154: 5. 

WH Park Place Mezz, LLC was the sole member of Respondent 

WH Park Place, LLC. The two respondents are collectively labeled "Park 

Place." 

Park Place's relationship with non-party Wright Runstad. 

Between January 1, 2010 through at least January 25, 2010, Wright 

Runstad was the property manager for 1200 Sixth A venue. CP 121 :22-24, 

122:4-9, 131:18-132:5. Wright Runstad reported to the building 

ownership (Park Place). CP 122:10-13. 1 As property manager, Wright 

Runstad managed Park Place's elevator contract with Fujitec (a defendant 

below) and was solely responsible for scheduling routine maintenance, 

keeping track of all trouble calls and sending them in to Fujitec. CP 

122:19-123:5,123:18-21,124:24-125:2. Wright Runstad was responsible 

I Note that the "WH" in respondents' names stands for "Washington Holdings." 
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for taking any tenant complaints for the elevators. CP 123:12-14. Wright 

Runstad and Fujitec, alone, were responsible for taking an elevator out of 

service if it was malfunctioning in any way. CP 123:22-124:2, 125:8-13. 

Wright Runstad was solely responsible for ensuring that the building's 

elevators were safe for tenants to enter. CP 124:15-23, 125:4-7. 

Wright Runstad knew of no problems with the parking garage 

elevator in the year before Pascal's accident there. CP 126:2-7, 126:20-

127:4, 127:21-128:1, 133:7-10. Fujitec did not inform Wright Runstad of 

any malfunctions, and building tenants had no complaints regarding that 

elevator in the four months before Pascal's accident. CP 128:9-11, 

128 :22-129: 1. In those four months, Fuj itec did not do any service on the 

garage elevator except for routine maintenance (including a Talon belt 

change). CP 126:20-128:1, 129:22-130:2. Wright Runstad stated that 

there wasn't any problem with the garage elevator. CP 127:24-128:1. 

Park Place's relationship with Fujitec. By January 2010, Fujitec 

had been the contracted elevator maintenance and servicing company for 

1200 Sixth Avenue for several years. CP 136:18-23, 137:18-20. Fujitec 

performed monthly preventative maintenance as well as service callbacks. 

CP 138:20-139: 1 O. From September 2009 until Wright Runstad left as 

property manager, the Fujitec elevator technician communicated only with 

the Wright Runstad chief engineer and with security guards (to check into 

the building), never the building owners. CP 138:2-10, 140:15-21. 
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Fujitec perfonned and documented its monthly maintenance 

checks on the parking garage elevator between September 2009 and 

January 2010. CP 141:16-17, 142:4-7, 142:19-145:8. There was nothing 

the Fujitec technician was supposed to check, that he did not check. Id. 

The last monthly maintenance check prior to Pascal's accident was just 

eight days before, on January 13,2010. CP 145:11-15. 

A callback is where the building (Wright Runstad or a security 

guard) or the Fujitec technician finds an issue with an elevator and reports 

it to Fujitec. CP 145:20-146:13. Up through Wright Runstad's leaving as 

property manager, none of the building owners or their employees ever 

made a callback to Fujitec. CP 146: 14-20. There were only two callbacks 

for the parking elevator between September 2009 and January 2010. CP 

147:18-151:11, .156:20-157:1. One was called in (and performed) on 

October 20, 2009, and the other called in (and performed) on October 27, 

2009, both to repair the talon belt on the car. CP 149:25-150:17, 152:3-

19. Neither had anything to do with misleveling of the elevator. CP 

151:25-152:2,152:21-23. 

The Fujitec technician did not observe any misleveling problems in 

the garage elevator in the four months prior to Ms. Pascal's accident. CP 

153:14-17, 155:14-18. In that same time period, he also did not receive 

any complaints of misleveling. CP 153: 18-21. Fujitec was responsible for 

insuring that no mislevelings occurred. CP 154:22-25. 
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Jeanne Pascal's elevator fall. Appellant Pascal alleges that on 

January 21, 2010, she was injured as a result of a fall while attempting to 

enter the garage elevator in 1200 Sixth Avenue. CP 60:24-25. 

Specifically, she testified: 

A I -- I entered the elevator, I felt my foot clip -- my 
left flip clip what I assumed was the floor because 
there was nothing else to clip. 

Q Okay. 

A I mean the building -- the garage floor is concrete 
and stationary. The only thing that can possibly 
elevate or not elevate is the elevator. 

Q I understand -- I understand that. 

A So, I clipped that. I pitched forward and if this were 
-- I'll use -- I won't pick you out and use that - if 
this was the elevator -- if this is the elevator 
entrance, what happened is I pitched forward, and I 
pitched into this comer (indicating). Okay? 

Q Uh-huh. 

A I pitched into this comer, went down, and I 
smacked my face along the railing, the steel railing 
around the elevator. 

CP 164:6-22. Pascal admits that the elevator doors were completely open, 

and the cab floor had stopped moving, before she walked in. CP 162: 17-

23. 

Pascal testified that she did not observe any misleveling in the 

elevator floor on the day of her accident. CP 163:24-164:1, 165:4-13. In 

fact, she didn't remember ever seeing the garage elevator mislevel in the 
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26 years she worked in the building, including for the five or six years 

prior to her accident when she was parking in the building garage every 

day. CP 160: 1 0-21, 161: 15-18, 166: 17-167: 17. She further admitted that 

she never reported the garage elevator as misleveling. CP 166: 18-20. 

Pascal and Swank's lawsuit. Pascal sued Park Place and others 

for negligence, with her husband Swank asserting loss of consortium. CP 

28. Pascal and Swank later amended their complaint to add claims against 

Fujitec. CP 59. 

2. Decisions Below 

In the trial court, Park Place and Fujitec moved for summary 

judgment. As more fully described under "Argument" below, Park 

Place's motion explained that there was no evidence of any elevator defect 

that could have caused Pascal's fall, because its contractor Fujitec 

performed its monthly maintenance work on the parking garage elevator 

on January 13, 2010, and there were no service calls or complaints of 

elevator misleveling between January 13, 2010 and Pascal's fall on 

January 21, 2010. (Pascal herself admitted she did not observe any 

misleveling - ever.) 

Park Place further argued that, assummg it was subject to the 

common carrier standard,2 it had met its duty "to take reasonably 

foreseeable precautions on behalf of its passengers" "compatible with the 

practical operation of its business" by contracting with two companies to 

2 Application of the common carrier standard is not raised on appeal. 
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assist in the fulfillment of its responsibilities. Property manager Wright 

Runstad scheduled routine elevator maintenance, kept track of all trouble 

calls, sent the calls in to Fujitec, took tenant complaints for the elevators, 

and was authorized to take an elevator out of service if it was 

malfunctioning in any way. Fujitec performed monthly preventative 

maintenance as well as service callbacks. 

In response to Park Place's motion, Pascal and Swank proffered 

witness declarations alleging elevator mislevelings somewhere in the 

multi-elevator building, over a long time period (mostly preceding Park 

Place's ownership of the building), all but two failing to specify the degree 

of misleveling (as misleveling up to W' is permissible under WAC 

elevator standards). None of the witness declarations alleged garage 

elevator defects in the relevant time period (between Fujitec's 1113/2010 

monthly inspection and Pascal's fall eight days later). At most, Pascal's 

witness Lither alleged a misleveling of 'about W' to o/.."'thirteen days after 

Pascal's fall, which of course could not have proximately caused Pascal's 

fall; and witness Wojnicz alleged instances of garage elevator misleveling 

(of at least y:!") at least two-and-a-half years prior to Pascal's fall, which 

Pascal admitted did not continue into her use of the elevator. Notably, 

Pascal and Swank did not allege any unfinished discovery necessary for 

them to rebut summary judgment (i.e., under CR 59(f)). 

Pascal and Swank also offered an expert declaration, but their 

expert never examined the elevator, did not opine that there was any 

defect in the elevator at the time of Pascal's fall, did not explain the causes 
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of misleveling, and did not tie together isolated incidents of mislevelings. 

Rather, their expert Buckman opined under res ipsa loquitor that there was 

a defect because there was an injury: the elevator "probably" misleveled, 

and more that lh", because "a lower misleveling would likely not have 

tripped Jeanne Pascal." 

After oral argument, the trial court granted summary judgment to 

Park Place. CP 296-297; RP 28:16-17. It found Pascal and Swank failed 

to raise a genuine issue of material fact and that Park Place met its burden 

as a common carrier by having service contracts with Wright Runstad and 

Fujitec. RP 30: 1-2, 30:23-31 :3. 

Pascal and Swank moved for reconsideration, arguing in part that 

they had recently sought more discovery (a security guard logbook and 

Fujitec depositions). It did not argue for adverse inferences by the 

absence of this information. The trial court did not invite responsive 

briefing and thus, following local rule,3 Park Place did not provide any. 

There was no oral argument. The trial court denied reconsideration by 

short written order without findings or conclusions. CP 319-321. 

D. ARGUMENT 

1. Elevators can malfunction without owner negligence. 

Washington courts have repeatedly recognized that conveyance 

devices such as elevators can malfunction in the absence of negligence. In 

3 "No response to a motion for reconsideration shall be filed unless requested by the 
court." King County LCR 59(b). 
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Adams v. Western Host, Inc., 55 Wn. App. 601, 779 P.2d 281 (1989), the 

plaintiff was injured when an elevator in the University Tower misleveled 

one to two feet above the ground floor. (In contrast to that documented, 

same-day, large mislevel, Pascal alleges misleveling of just 3;4", occurring 

eight days after Pascal's fall, and also occurring over two years before 

Pascal's fall.) The Adams building owner, like Park Place, employed an 

elevator maintenance company for regular maintenance checks and service 

callbacks. The Adams court found no liability: 

This is not a case where the malfunction is so unusual that we can 
say it does not occur in the absence of negligence. Elevators are 
mechanical devices of some complexity. Materials can wear out or 
break without negligence being involved. 

55 Wn. App. at 66. The Washington legislature recognizes such ordinary 

malfunctions by allowing elevator mislevelings up to 12".4 Here, as the 

trial court noted (RP 29:5-13), Pascal and Swank's expert entirely failed to 

explain the causes of elevator misleveling, and did not tie together isolated 

past incidents of mislevelings (i.e., those observed by witness Wojnicz) to 

Pascal's fall over two-and-a-half years later. There was no evidence that 

these past incidents, under different building ownership, and followed by 

thousands of uneventful elevator trips for years, had anything to do with 

Pascal's fall. 

4 WAC 296-96-0650 states that Washington's Department of Labor and Industries has 
adopted ASME A 17.1-2004, Rule 2.26.11 (a). Pascal's expert Buckman explained 
that this rule allows floor leveling accuracy of +/- Y2 inch. CP 242:20-23. 
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2. Park Place's duty as a common carrier. 

Assuming that Park Place is a common carrier rather than "mere" 

property owner, its standard of care still contemplates reasonable care, not 

strict liability. An elevator operator is a common carrier and owes "a duty 

of the highest care for its passengers' safety compatible with the practical 

operation of its business." Brown v. Crescent Stores, Inc., 54 Wn. App. 

861,863-64,776 P.2d 705 (1989); see WPI 100.01. This duty requires a 

common carrier to take reasonably foreseeable precautions on behalf of its 

passengers. Brown, 54 Wn. App. 861 (emphasis added). Breach of this 

duty is established by evidence that a common carrier's negligence played 

"any part, even the slightest" in the plaintiffs injury. Seeberger v. 

Burlington N. R.R. Co., 91 Wn. App. 865, 867, 960 P.2d 461 (1998) 

(citing Moore v. Union Pac. R.R., 83 Wn. App. 112, 115,920 P.2d 616 

(1996)). A common carrier, however, is not an insurer and is not liable 

"for injuries received from ordinary jolts and jerks, necessarily incident to 

the mode of transportation, which are not the result of negligence." 

Brown, 54 Wn. App. at 864 (citing Gentry v. Greyhound Corp., 46 Wn. 2d 

631,633,283 P.2d 979 (1955)). 

3. There was no evidence of elevator defect in the relevant time 
period. 

Fujitec performed all of its monthly maintenance work on the 

parking garage elevator, including on January 13,2010. CP 141:16-17, 
-13-
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142:4-7, 142:19-145:8, 145:11-15. There was nothing Fujitec was 

supposed to check, that it did not check. ld. (Pascal and Swank do not 

provide any evidence questioning the adequacy of Fujitec's inspection.s) 

Pascal fell in the parking garage elevator only eight days later. CP 60:24-

25. 

Thus, the relevant time period in which to analyze Park Place's 

duty is only the eight days between the inspection on January 13,2010 and 

Pascal's fall on January 20, 2012. Otherwise, Park Place's duty becomes 

hyper-strict liability: if there was even one elevator mislevel at any time in 

the building's history, then despite subsequent, and successful, Fujitec and 

City Elevator Inspector inspections, Park Place would be liable for all 

future elevator falls regardless of causation. (As Adams noted, 

mislevelings are ordinary and not necessarily representative of a defect. 

Misleveling occurrences are not necessarily related.) And Park Place 

could be liable regardless of whether it owned the building at the time of 

the long-ago defect! (Park Place owned the building only beginning 

January 2010 - the very month of Pascal's fall - onwards. CP 62:25-26.) 

None of Pascal and Swank's fact witness declarations alleged 

garage elevator defects in the relevant time period: 

5 Pascal and Swank pointed to declaration excerpts that don't provide any such 
evidence. CP 189: 17-20. 
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• Pascal herself admitted she did not ever see any misleveling or 

trip hazard before her fall. CP 255:25. See also CP 160:10-21,161 :15-18, 

163:24-164:1,165:4-13,166:17-167:17. 

• Bogdan Wojnicz observed garage elevator misleveling, but he 

retired from the building in June 2008, two-and-a-half years prior to 

Pascal's fall. CP 269:23-26. 

• Kevin McDermott observed misleveling, as well as fast elevator 

travel. But McDermott retired from the building in July 2009, a year-and

a-half prior to Pascal's fall. CP 274:1-2. He did not specify which of the 

eight elevators had the problems. And the elevator travel speed issue was 

irrelevant to Pascal's alleged defect of misleveling. 

• Michael Graeber stated that the "levelers" In the elevators 

sometimes "drift[ ed] out of adjustment." But he left the building in April 

2007, almost three years before Pascal's fall. He did not specify which 

elevators "drifted," or whether "drifting" was the same thing as 

misleveling. He alleged that the garage elevator "quit running" sometime 

during a prior building owner's ownership of the building, which was a 

different kind of defect than Pascal alleged, and which preceded Park 

Place's ownership. He also alleges hearsay regarding tenant statements. 

• Jennifer Eason twice observed misleveling, as well as fast 

closure of elevator doors. But Eason provided no time period for the 

mislevelings, other than during her work tenure (January 2007 to present).

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